
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Flooding Scrutiny Review Panel  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Monday, 28 September 2020 at 10.00 am 

Location: Microsoft Teams 

Contact: Ms. C. Tuohy (0116 305548£) 

Email: Cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mrs. M. Wright CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC 

Mr. D. Harrison CC 
 

 

Mr. T. Parton CC  
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Notes of the meeting held on 18 August 2020.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

2.  
  

Declarations of Interest.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Flooding Presentation  
 

 
 

(Pages 7 - 54) 

 A presentation to consider the effectiveness of existing processes and 
procedures in relation to:- 
 

 Flooding Events 

 Section 19 Investigations  

 Highways Drainage  

 Planning Applications 

 Role of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)  
 
 

 

4.  
  

Date of the next meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 Monday 26 October 2020. 
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 
 

Notes of a meeting of the Flooding Scrutiny Review Panel held at County Hall, Glenfield 
on Tuesday, 18 August 2020.  

 
PRESENT 

 
 

 
Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC 
Mr. D. Harrison CC 
Mr T. Parton CC 
 

Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. M. Wright CC 
 

 
 
1. Election of Chairman for the period of the review.  

It was moved, seconded and carried that Mrs. M. Wright CC be appointed 
Chairman of the Panel for the period of the review. 
 

Mrs. M. Wright CC – In the Chair 
 

1. Declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda.  

Members were invited to declare any interests in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 
Mr. D. Harrison CC declared a personal interest due to prior involvement in 
Flooding in his division. 
 

3. Conduct of Scrutiny Review Panels.  

The Panel considered a report of the Chief Executive which outlined the 
procedures for conducting Scrutiny Review Panels, which were to be 
predominantly held in public session. A copy of this briefing paper marked 
‘Agenda Item 3’ is filed with these minutes. 
  
The Panel noted that it was a time limited review that planned to cover five 
meetings.  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That the procedures for conducting Scrutiny Review Panel meetings be noted. 
 

4. Scoping Document and Work Programme.  

The Panel considered the Terms of Reference and Work Programme for the 
Scrutiny Review. A copy of these documents, marked ‘Agenda Item 4’, is filed 
with these minutes. 
  

3 Agenda Item 1



 

  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That the Terms of Reference and Project Plan for the Scrutiny Review Panel 
be approved. 
 

5. Flooding Presentation.  

The Panel received a detailed presentation from the Assistant Director for 
Environment and Transport on Flooding. A copy of the presentation is filed with 
these minutes marked ‘Agenda Item 5’. 
 
In introducing Flooding to the Panel the Assistant Director for Environment and 
Transport set out the Flood and Water Management Act 2015 that enshrined 
Leicestershire County Council’s role as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) and 
responsibility for managing the risk of flooding from surface water, ground 
water and ordinary watercourses and role in encouraging cooperation between 
Risk Management Authorities (RMA). The Assistant Director for Environment 
and Transport stressed that the role did not provide the County Council with 
the power or ability to implement flooding solutions, funding to deliver flood 
related work or the power to make RMA’s undertake flood related works under 
their responsibility.  
 

Arising from the discussion the following points were noted:- 
 

i. The County Council had become a Statutory Consultee on major 
planning applications following the 2015 National Planning Policy 
Framework. As LLFA the Council now commented on over 1000 
applications a year, while the County Council could make 
recommendations, ultimately any decision and enforcement of any 
agreed mitigating measures was the responsibility of the planning 
authority. 

 
ii. The new housing developments that had experienced flooding for the 

first time in October and November 2019 had been approved prior to the 
changes to the National Planning Policy Framework which preceded the 
County Council’s role as statutory consultee. 

 
iii. It was important that members of the public informed the County Council 

when there were instances of flooding or near misses so that a 
comprehensive picture of flood risk in Leicestershire could be 
maintained. It was understood that some houseowners may be reluctant 
to report such instances due to concern over increased insurance costs. 
The Panel felt that it was important homeowners took on their own 
responsibility to ensure they were protected. Where areas regularly 
flooded the County Council worked with resident’s regarding property 
flood protection.  

 
iv. Flooding events could be caused by various different factors, sometimes 

factors were easy to establish such as where a river burst its banks, 
others were as a result of cumulative issues of rain, gully’s, roads and 
riparian owner related and needed an in-depth investigation to identify 
key causation. 

 

4



 

v. Staff turnover within the Flood Risk Management Team had been high 
over the past five years and had hampered the County Council’s ability 
to keep action plans updated and maintenance of strong working 
relationships with other agencies. Turnover was as a result of the 2015 
regulation changes, which put a higher demand for the skillset related to 
flooding and planning. More recently the Team had stabilised following 
approval of a Market Premia. Members requested further information 
regarding the current team structure in relation to the Flood Risk 
Management and Drainage Team and its process for liaising with 
external agencies.  

 
vi. The County Council maintained a register of structures or features that 

were likely to have a significant effect on flood risk in its area. 
Historically the Council did not have a full image of its assets due to 
inheritance of hidden assets from other agencies which were mostly 
underground. The County Council had around 140,000 culverts across 
Leicestershire, more detail on ownership of assets would be given at the 
following meeting.  

 
vii. Mr Harrison thanked officers for public engagement within Appleby 

Magna following recent flooding events. The importance of working 
relationships between landowners, parishes, Severn Trent, the 
Department for Farms and Rural Affairs, the district, councillors and the 
public was stressed. While previously there had been a concern with 
level of response from Severn Trent, it was evident the relationship had 
improved in recent years. There was a need for areas to look at new 
technologies to disseminate flood warnings in areas, which councillors 
needed to promote in their role as community champions.  

 
viii. Mr Sheahan expressed concern regarding the use of the phrase ‘risk 

management’ in relation to flooding sites and was concerned that the 

County Council as LLFA only had a duty to coordinate response with no 

real power to insist other agencies carry out work.  In response the 

Assistant Director explained that the County Council did not have infinite 

resource to be able to resolve all flooding occurrences. The following 

meeting would explain how Leicestershire County Council as Highway 

Authority used the risk-based approach to respond during storm events. 

 
ix. The Assistant Director informed Members that the risk-based approach 

was evidence based, and looked at how the County Council could deal 

with risks identified, where flooding could not be prevented the Council 

would look at the best approach to take, such as property protection or 

flood defences. However, Members needed to be aware that often big 

flood defence measures channelled issues elsewhere. The Council had 

limited resource and thus it had to decide where resource goes under 

the evidence base, as per Government’s guidance.  

 
x. The Group felt that it was important that the County Council managed 

expectations that the council could not resolve all issues for residents, 

residents also needed to act to protect themselves as riparian owners or 

residents. 

 

5



 

RESOLVED: 
That the presentation be noted and further information be circulated as 
discussed. 

 
 

6. Date of next meeting.  

RESOLVED: 
 
That future meetings be held on the following dates:- 
 
Monday 28th September 
Monday 26th October 
Monday 23rd November 
 

 
 
 CHAIRMAN 
18 August 2020 
 
 

6



1

Flooding

Scrutiny Review Panel

28th September 2020

Ian Vears,

Assistant Director, Environment and Transport

7
A

genda Item
 3



2

Purpose of meeting 2

To consider the effectiveness of existing processes and 

procedures in relation to:-

❑ Flooding Events – how do we react and what do we do and not do.

❑ Section 19 Investigations – where internally property flooding has 

occurred above a set threshold. 

❑ Highways Drainage – what are our assets and how do we maintain 

them. 

❑ Planning Applications – the role of the Lead Local Flood Authority 

as a statutory consultee.

❑ Role of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) – attenuating 

surface water to slow the rate into the system 

8



3

Structure in September 2020

Team Structures – Flood Risk Management
9



Flooding

Structure in October 2016

Team Structures – Flood Risk Management
10



5

Drainage

Structure in September 2020

Team Structures – Highway Drainage
11



6

Drainage

Structure in October 2016

Team Structures – Highway Drainage
12



Flood Events

Roles of the Local Resilience Forum, 

Highway Authority and Lead Local 

Flood Authority

13



8

The Local Resilience Forum (LRF)
14



9

❑ Establish Multi-Agency Tactical and Strategic Coordinating Groups

❑ Establish and staff the Communications Cell

❑ Provides a link between Local Authorities and other responder organisations

❑ Contribute to the humanitarian response to the incident, including the care of vulnerable 

people

❑ The establishment, staffing and administration of Emergency Centres including:

❑ Emergency Rest Centres

❑ Survivor Reception Centres

❑ Friends & Family Centres

❑ Humanitarian Assistance Centres (HAC)

❑ Activation of local plans and deployment of staff

❑ Liaison across all 10 authorities to coordinate public messages, resource allocation and 

funding

❑ Organise and support voluntary organisational support to the public

❑ Establish Recovery Coordinating Group and lead on community recovery post flooding

During a Flooding Incident the LRF will;
15



10

Flood Events - Highway Authority

❑ During weather events, enquiries are made by 

phone or email to the Customer Service Centre 

(CSC) or logged on LCC report it form on the 

LCC Website -

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/popular-

now/report-a-road-problem. These are usually 

from members of the public, emergency 

services and flood wardens. 

❑ Reports are passed to the Operational Control 

Room (OCR) staff during the working day the 

out of hours Duty Officer at night.

❑ If an extreme event is forecast the OCR can be 

staffed out of hours and extra crews can be put 

on standby for extra resilience.

16

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/popular-now/report-a-road-problem


11

Flood Events - Highway Authority

❑ We will initially respond 

by making the location 

safe – this could be by 

closing roads, sending 

sandbags to protect 

properties and carrying 

out emergency jetting 

and gully emptying 

works.

17

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiNoLmf0dHeAhUBD8AKHVVPDjsQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwhale.co.uk%2Flow-volume-combination%2F&psig=AOvVaw0zXgcAc9VONdhzv3T7L1xv&ust=1542207610148241


12

Flood Events cont.

❑ After the event follow up works and further 

investigations will take place dependant 

upon the outcome of the initial response to 

find the cause of the flooding.

❑ Flood patrols are set up for know locations 

such as the Soar Valley in Charnwood to 

ensure any road closed signs remain in 

place and are only removed when 

appropriate.

❑ Road Closure information is made available 

via LCC website (link to one.network

provided), social media and local media. 

18

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwi8hoKW09HeAhUReMAKHaNGBEYQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.eveningexpress.co.uk%2Ffp%2Fnews%2Flocal%2Fheres-a-list-of-all-the-north-east-roads-closed-due-to-flooding42%2F&psig=AOvVaw1e0_Ostcx1zWVMx53oFeEw&ust=1542208127195052


13

LLFA role during flooding events

❑ Collate information on flooding and coordinate with other Risk Management 

Authorities (RMAs) - reports can be submitted online via the flood reporting 

form – https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/environment-and-planning/flooding-

and-drainage/report-a-flood or by email at flooding@leics.gov.uk or by calling 

the Customer Service Centre on 0116 3050001. 

❑ Provide guidance and support to those flooded, directing them to the 

relevant RMA as required such as the Environment Agency for main river 

flooding, STW/Anglian Water for sewer flooding and the district/borough 

councils for help with sandbag provision or relocation where properties are no 

longer habitable. 

❑ Attend site meetings with residents and stakeholders as soon as possible to 

offer information and guidance. Not a statutory duty but often a productive 

start of any investigation. 

19

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/environment-and-planning/flooding-and-drainage/report-a-flood
mailto:flooding@leics.gov.uk


14

LLFA role during flooding events

❑ Assess all reports of internal property flooding for potential s19 investigations

❑ Primarily an investigatory role to identify relevant RMAs, identify causes of 

flooding and coordinate responses.

❑ Key point: The LLFA does not have a duty to implement a solution to a 

flooding incident and does not have funding allocated to deliver flood 

related works. It also does not have powers to force other RMAs to 

undertake flood related work under their responsibility.

20



Section 19 Investigations

Victoria Coombes – Senior Engineer 

(Flood Risk Management)

21



16
Groundwater Flooding

Background

Ordinary Watercourse 

Flooding

Surface Water Flooding 

Section 19 Investigations
22



17

Leicestershire’s current Formal Investigation 

Criteria (as approved by Cabinet in 

September 2015) 

❑ Loss of life or serious injury

❑ Critical infrastructure flooded or nearly flooded 

from unknown or multiple sources

❑ Internal property flooding to a single property* 

from unknown or multiple sources

(This list is not in any particular order)

* Does not include garages/outbuildings/gardens etc.

23



18

- Short form for a very simple investigation

S19s - What do they look like?
24



19

- Longer report for more detailed and 

complicated investigations

S19s - What do they look like?
25



20

SECTION 19S NUMBERS
No. completed 20

Short forms 2 (10%)

Long forms 18 (90%)

No. completed by consultants 5 (25%)

No. outstanding 14* (8 short/6 long)

Doesn’t take account the number of 

investigations that do not become s19s.

*Includes those from the wet winter of 2019/20

❑ Average time spent per short report – 40 hours (around £2k)

❑ Average time spent per long report – 65 hours (around £3k)

S19s – The Facts
26



21

S19s – Actions

❑ Each completed section 19 report recommends a number of actions.

❑ Leicestershire County Council in it’s role as LLFA and LHA usually have 

recommended actions.

❑ Risk Management Authority action log kept – currently working towards a 

more robust system of following up on action progress. 

❑ Key Point: No powers to force other RMAs to carry out works but the 

Flood and Water Management Act (FWMA) imposes a duty on them to 

work with the LLFA on flood investigation matters. 

27



Highway Drainage

Debbi Payne – Environmental and 

Preventative Maintenance Manager

28



23

Highway Drainage

❑ Under the Highways Act 1980, the Highway Authority, (Leicestershire County 

Council’s Highways Drainage Team) have a responsibility to manage and 

maintain drainage related to the functioning of the highway

❑ Other agencies and owners also have drainage assets within the highway 

curtilage.

❑ Highway drainage consists of a number of assets
▪ Roadside drains and channels/gullies (approximately 136,000 gullies over 2,575 miles of road)

▪ Shallow channels that convey water off the road into a drainage ditch mainly in rural locations (known as 

grips). (Approximately 50,000).

▪ Ponds and lagoons 

▪ Inspection chambers, catchpits and manholes 

▪ Underground culverts/piped watercourse (1200 approx.)

▪ Soakaways

29



24

Asset Ownership.
30



25

Asset Ownership cont.

❑ Highway drainage is designed to collect water the falls onto the surface of 

highway via a road gully or grip and transfer it to a suitable outfall such as :

▪ Water Authority surface water sewer or combined sewer

▪ Direct to an ordinary watercourse or main river

▪ Roadside ditch

▪ Culverted watercourses (under fields for example)

Highway Gullies Severn Trent apparatus out falling into watercourse.31



26

Asset Data

Accurate asset data helps us to manage and maintain our highway apparatus efficiently. 

We do not hold records for some of our assets.

❑ Gullies – good location and condition records held which are updated at each visit by 

contractor or technician

❑ Drainage Grips – location records for North of the County collected winter 2019, 

ongoing project to collect Southern data winter 2020

❑ Underground Culverts – records for A,B and C roads held, current project underway 

summer 2020 to collect location and condition data for unclassified networks and 

private flood risk culverts

❑ Offlet kerbs and ACO drainage – poor records, project underway to record locations

❑ Underground highway drainage pipes and connections into third party apparatus 

and outfalls – very few records of underground highway pipework locations or 

condition

❑ Manholes and catchpits – no location or condition data recorded

❑ Ponds and lagoons (usually on newly built bypasses eg Earl Shilton/Rearsby) no 

central record or maintenance information

32



27

Routine Maintenance of Highway Assets
Roadside Gullies.

The most visible asset is the roadside gully and the most frequent customer contact  

received for drainage is for a blocked gully. 

❑ All 136,000 road gullies have been assigned a priority and are on a routine cleansing 

schedule.  The priority has been decided on a risk based approach by looking at historical 

data about the amount of silt collected in previous visits and on the location of the gully.  

There are 3 priorities: 

❑ P1 gullies are emptied every 10 months.

❑ P2 gullies are emptied every 20 months

❑ P3 gullies are inspected every 24 months

❑ Any defects are reported back and subsequently investigated.

❑ The asset is reviewed after the 20 month cycle for any locations that need re-prioritising

Drainage Grips

❑ 50,000 grips in rural locations are cleansed annually during the winter period

.

33



28

Reactive Maintenance.

❑ The most frequent type of report received is a blocked gully

❑ A reactive visit will often solve the problem by removing any blockages in the gully pot or 

the pipework.  

❑ Sometimes the problem cannot be solved on the first visit – the underground pipework may 

be damaged and require a repair and the Highway Drainage Team will carry out an 

investigation to find the source of the problem.  

❑ This can include a camera survey and trial holes to find the extent of the problem prior to 

the final repair taking place.  

❑ It may be that the highway drainage system is all working but the pipes or watercourse that 

it runs into might be blocked.  In this case we will work with third parties such as water 

authorities and landowners to highlight any works required by them. 

34



29

Reactive Works.

In the period from 1st Jan 2019 to 31st December 2019 we :

❑ Received 2287 reports of blocked gullies 

❑ Received 851 reports of other drainage or flooding incidents

❑ Attended to reports of 1464 blocked gullies on a reactive basis 

❑ Attended to 75369 gullies in P1 and P2 locations for routine maintenance

❑ Inspected 14033 lower priority gullies in P3 locations.

❑ Carried out 1658 jobs to investigate and repair highway drainage infrastructure

❑ Had an average backlog of 266 outstanding enquiries at the end of each month 

❑ Had an average number of 528 blocked gullies + jetting jobs/ 255 Drainage 

Maintenance jobs outstanding per month jobs waiting to be scheduled

❑ Had an average of 4 drainage gangs per week carrying out repairs

❑ Had an average of 2 gully emptiers and 1 camera van carrying out reactive works

35



30

Customer Enquiries

Enquires received monthly over a 2 year period for highway drainage and gullies  

and flood risk team subjects.

36



LLFA as a Statutory 

Consultee in Planning

Mike Warner – Consultant Senior 

Flood Risk Engineer

37



32

The Town and Country Planning Act

The Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) is a 

statutory consultee to the planning process for surface water 

drainage matters for major development.

LLFA Planning Remit
38



33

The Town and Country Planning Act

• Statutory consultee to the planning 

process for surface water drainage 

matters for major development as defined 

within the House of Commons: Written 

Statement (HCWS161)

• Consultee role began 15th April 2015

• This statutory role was previously fulfilled 

by the Environment Agency

• To make better use of the planning 

system to secure sustainable drainage 

systems (SuDS)

LLFA Planning Remit
39



34

Area of LLFA Planning Remit

• Blaby District Council 

• Charnwood Borough Council 

• Harborough District Council 

• Hinckley & Bosworth Borough 

Council

• Melton Borough Council

• North West Leicestershire 

District Council

• Oadby & Wigston Borough 

Council

• Leicestershire County Council*

40



35

Town and Country Planning Act

• The statutory consultee roles to the planning process began 15th

April 2015

• Cover surface water drainage matters for major development 

• Approximately 1200 application consultations each year which 

receive bespoke responses

We also pass comment on; 

• Minor development and other local flood risk matters where 

there is existing flood risk concern

• Provision of standing advice 

• Pre-application advice (100 in the last year)

Key Responsibilities for the LLFA

LLFA Planning Remit
41



36

Their statutory consultee role continues for:

• All development in Flood Zone 2 and 3 (fluvial/tidal) 

• All development within defined ‘critical drainage areas’ or 

areas at high risk of flooding from rivers and the sea 

• Other environmental and groundwater matters etc.

Their statutory consultee role ceased for:

• Any development of land of 1 hectare or more

• Development involving the culverting or control of flow of 

a watercourse (except main river)

• Matters relating to surface water

The Environment Agency Role

Key Planning Remit Change
42



37

Major developments are defined within ‘The Town and Country 

Planning Order 2015’, and may be summarised as the following:

• 10 or more dwellings are to be provided

• Number of dwellings is unknown and the site area is 0.5ha or 

greater

• Provision of floor space created by the development is 

1,000m² or more

• Development site area is 1ha or more

• Development associated with the working of minerals or the 

use of land for mineral-working deposits

• Waste development

What is a Major Planning Application?

LLFA Planning Remit
43



38

LLFA Planning Remit

❑ Planning enforcement:  there is an expectation that the LLFA 

enforces on developments that they have provided advice on. 

This function sits with the Local Planning Authority. 

❑ The LLFA does not discharge conditions, this is carried out by 

the Local Planning Authority. The LLFA provide a reviewing 

process and make recommendations but it is for the LPA to 

make the final decision. 

44



Sustainable Drainage 

Systems (SuDS)

Mike Warner – Consultant Senior 

Flood Risk Engineer

45



40

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
46



41

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

What are SuDS?

47



42

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

The most common types of SuDS encountered include:

• Dry Detention Basin

• Wet Ponds

• Pervious Paving

• Swales

• Soakaways*

• Tanks*

48



43

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

SuDS seek mimic natural drainage processes to reduce the 

effect on the quality, peak rate and quantity of run-off from 

developments. SuDS can also provide amenity and biodiversity 

benefits. 

49



44

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

Responsibility for maintenance of SuDS

❑ Water authorities – previously optional, Sewer Adoption Design and 

Construction guidance 2020 defines most SuDS as a surface water sewer 

and therefore should be adopted as such. 

❑ Private ownership – many SuDS features on new developments will be 

incorporated into areas to remain in the ownership of the developer and to be 

maintained by them also (management companies)

❑ Highway Authority – in some cases, where appropriate, such features 

can be considered suitable for adoption as part of the public highway. 

50



45

Future Meetings

❑ Meeting 3 - To examine partnership arrangements 

currently in place with Water Authorities (Severn Trent and 

Anglian Water), Environment Agency and the Local 

Resilience Forum (LFR)

❑ Meeting 4 – discuss draft report along with 

recommendations.

❑ Meeting 5 - Agree and publishing final report. 

51



Back to the Chair

52



47

Resources / background documents

▪ Flood and Water Management Act 2010:

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29

▪ Highways Act 1980:

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66

▪ House of Commons Cabinet Briefing : 

Flood Risk Management and Funding (November 2017)

http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7514/CBP-7514.pdf

▪ Government advice to Riparian Landowners:

Owning a Watercourse (15 February 2018)

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/owning-a-watercourse

(This guidance is summarized by the attached EA leaflet, ‘Living On the Edge’)

▪ Leicestershire County Council Flood Risk Management Strategy:

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/environment-and-planning/flooding-and-

drainage/flood-risk-management

53

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66
http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7514/CBP-7514.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/owning-a-watercourse
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/environment-and-planning/flooding-and-drainage/flood-risk-management


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Notes of the meeting held on 18 August 2020.
	3 Flooding Presentation

